
RUSHMOOR BOROUGH COUNCIL

POLICY AND PROJECT ADVISORY 
BOARD

at the Council Offices, Farnborough on
Thursday, 12th July, 2018 at 7.00 pm

To:

Cllr A.R. Newell (Chairman)
Cllr Sophia Choudhary (Vice-Chairman)

Cllr Marina Munro (Vice-Chairman)

Cllr J.B. Canty
Cllr A.H. Crawford
Cllr P.I.C. Crerar
Cllr R.L.G. Dibbs

Cllr Mara Makunura
Cllr M.J. Roberts

Cllr P.F. Rust
Cllr J.E. Woolley

Enquiries regarding this agenda should be referred to the Administrator, Justine 
Davie, Democratic and Customer Services, Tel. (01252) 398832, Email. 

justine.davie@rushmoor.gov.uk.

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A
1. MINUTES – (Pages 1 - 4)

To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 5th June, 2018 (copy attached).

2. LEISURE FACILITIES AND ASSOCIATED CONTRACTS – (Pages 5 - 20)

To receive a presentation from the Council’s Head of Community and Environmental 
Services on the future of leisure provision in Rushmoor and to consider the next 
steps (presentation slides attached).

3. RESPONSE TO THE HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL T19 CONSULTATION – 
(Pages 21 - 58)

To consider Hampshire County Council’s T19 Consultation on street lighting, 
supported passenger transport services and concessionary travel and to discuss 
proposals 1-6 with a view to informing the Council’s response. A copy of the 
Consultation Information Pack is attached.

4. HAMPSHIRE 2050 - A VISION FOR THE FUTURE – (Pages 59 - 62)

To receive the Executive Director’s Report No. ED1801 (copy attached) setting out 
details on the Hampshire 2050 Commission of Inquiry which will consider evidence 
and key issues to inform a Vision for Hampshire in 2050.   

5. WORK PROGRAMME – (Pages 63 - 68)

To discuss the Policy and Project Advisory Board Work Programme (copy attached).

MEETING REPRESENTATION

Members of the public may ask to speak at the meeting on any of the items on the 
agenda by writing to the Board Administrator at the Council Offices, Farnborough by 
5.00 pm three working days prior to the meeting.

Applications for items to be considered for the next meeting must be received in 
writing to the Board Administrator fifteen working days prior to the meeting.

-----------



- 1 -

POLICY AND PROJECT ADVISORY 
BOARD

Meeting held on Tuesday, 5th June, 2018 at the Council Offices, Farnborough at 
7.00 pm.

Voting Members
Cllr A.R. Newell (Chairman)

Cllr Sophia Choudhary (Vice-Chairman)
Cllr Marina Munro (Vice-Chairman)

Cllr J.B. Canty
Cllr A.H. Crawford
Cllr P.I.C. Crerar
Cllr R.L.G. Dibbs

Cllr Mara Makunura
Cllr M.J. Roberts

Cllr P.F. Rust
Cllr J.E. Woolley

1. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMEN

RESOLVED:  That Cllrs Marina Munro and Sophia Choudhary be appointed Vice-
Chairmen for the 2018/19 Municipal Year.

2. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Karen Edwards, Corporate Director, provided a presentation on the roles and 
responsibilities of the Project and Policy Advisory Board.  The main purposes of the 
Board were to be a sounding board for policies and projects, examine specific 
priorities to prepare delivery plans and prepare new policies.  It was expected that 
the major project work would be dealt with through task and finish groups which 
would report back through the Board.  There were a number of potential sources 
where work for the Board could be generated including Council Notices of Motion, 
the Council Plan, requests from Cabinet and Government or other agency 
consultation papers.

It was proposed that a Progress Group was established which would meet between 
Board meetings to co-ordinate and develop the Board’s overall work plan and 
prepare agenda for the forthcoming meeting.  The Progress Group would also be 
required to draft terms of reference for the sub groups and informally track progress 
on the work of the sub groups appointed by the Board.

There were a number of existing groups already established which the Board would 
be requested to agree appointments to and some new groups were being proposed.  
The existing groups were the Aldershot Regeneration Group, Farnborough 
Regeneration Group (formerly Farnborough Town Centre Working Group) and the 
Elections Group.  It was proposed that the existing Local Plan Members Group 

Page 1

AGENDA ITEM No. 1



- 2 -

should incorporate the housing strategy work and rebranded as the Strategic 
Housing and Local Plan Group.  There were two other areas of work which it was 
proposed would require task and finish groups which were leisure facilities and 
contracts and the Rushmoor 2020 programme.

The Board discussed the proposals and raised a number of issues. Board members 
proposed a number of items of work to be include on the future work plan which 
included the Procurement Strategy, Hampshire T19 Programme and the 
Management Plan for Southwood Park.  There was also some discussion regarding 
whether there should be one regeneration group rather than a separate group for 
Aldershot and Farnborough.  It was agreed that the groups should remain separate 
and any common issues could be identified when the groups reported back to the 
Board.  It was also agreed that task and finish groups should be provided with a 
timeframe of when the work should be finished and reported back to the Board.  

The Board AGREED to the establishment of groups to consider the leisure facilities 
and contracts and the Rushmoor 2020 programme.  The Board also AGREED the 
rebranding of the Local Plan Member Group to the Strategic Housing and Local Plan 
Group.

The Board noted that a high priority for the Council was to set up a Local Housing 
Company by the end of 2018 to support the delivery of homes in the Borough.  It was 
proposed that, given the importance of the matter, the issue should be considered by 
the Board itself, instead of establishing a task and finish group.  The Board was 
advised that an additional meeting of the Board might be required to enable 
consideration of the Local Housing Company business case if it was to be 
considered at full Council at the end of July.  The business case would set out the 
aim of the Local Housing Company and the business plan containing the detail of the 
Local Housing Company would follow at a later date.  The Board AGREED for an 
additional meeting of the Board to be set up to enable consideration of the Local 
Housing Company business case, if required.

Action to be taken By whom When
Seek a suitable date for an additional Policy and 
Project Advisory Board meeting to consider the 
Local Housing Company business case, if required

Justine 
Davie

8 June 
2018

3. APPOINTMENTS

(1) Progress Group

RESOLVED: That the following members be appointed to serve on the Policy and 
Project Advisory Board Progress Group for the 2018/19 Municipal Year.

Chairman Cllr A.R. Newell
Vice-Chairmen Cllr Sophia Choudhary

Cllr Marina Munro
Conservative Group Cllr J.B. Canty

Page 2



- 3 -

Labour Group Cllr M.J. Roberts
Cllr P.F. Rust

(2) Elections Group

RESOLVED: That the following members be appointed to serve on the Elections 
Group for the 2018/19 Municipal Year.

Vice-Chairman Cllr Sophia Choudhary
Cabinet Member with 
responsibility for elections

Cllr G.B. Lyon

Chairman of Licensing and 
General Purposes Committee

Cllr J.E. Woolley

Conservative Group Cllr S.J. Masterson
Labour Group Cllr K. Dibble

Cllr B. Jones

(3) Strategic Housing and Local Plan Group

RESOLVED: That the following members be appointed to serve on the Strategic 
Housing and Local Plan Group for the 2018/19 Municipal Year.

Chairman Cllr A.R. Newell
Leader Cllr D.E. Clifford
Cabinet Member for 
Planning and Economy

Cllr Barbara Hurst

Chairman of Development 
Management Committee

Cllr B.A. Thomas

Conservative Group Cllr R.L.G. Dibbs
Cllr M.J. Tennant

Labour Group Cllr M.J. Roberts
Cllr C.P. Grattan

Independent Member Cllr D.M.T. Bell

(4) Aldershot Regeneration Group

RESOLVED: That the following members be appointed to serve on the Aldershot 
Regeneration Group for the 2018/19 Municipal Year.

Vice-Chairman Cllr Sophia Choudhary
Cabinet Member with 
responsibility for Regeneration

Cllr M.J. Tennant

Conservative Group from 
Aldershot wards

Cllr P.I.C. Crerar
Cllr M.L. Sheehan

Page 3



- 4 -

Labour Group from Aldershot 
wards

Cllr A.H. Crawford
Cllr Sue Dibble

(5) Farnborough Regeneration Group

RESOLVED: That the following members be appointed to serve on the Farnborough 
Regeneration Group for the 2018/19 Municipal Year.

Vice-Chairman Cllr Marina Munro
Cabinet Member with 
responsibility for Regeneration

Cllr M.J. Tennant

Conservative Group from 
Farnborough wards

Cllr Liz Corps
Cllr P.G. Taylor

Labour Group from 
Farnborough wards

Cllr C.P. Grattan
Cllr B. Jones

(6) Proposed Groups to be Established

The Board AGREED that the terms of reference for the Health, Wellbeing and 
Obesity Task and Finish Group would be developed by the Progress Group before 
any Members were appointed.

The Board AGREED that the terms of reference for the Leisure Facilities and 
Contracts Task and Finish Group would be developed by the Progress Group before 
any Members were appointed.

The Board AGREED that the terms of reference for the Modernisation and 
Improvement Programme Task and Finish Group would be developed by the 
Progress Group before any Members were appointed.

4. DEVELOPING THE WORK PLAN

The Board AGREED that the Progress Group would develop the work plan for the 
2018/19 Municipal Year.  The Board was advised that requests for issues to be 
included on the work plan should be submitted to one of the representatives on the 
Progress Group or the Board administrator.

The meeting closed at 8.15 pm.

 
CLLR A.R. NEWELL (CHAIRMAN)

------------

Page 4



Leisure Provision 

• Current Leisure Offer 

• Work to date on procurement of new arrangements 

• High Level Outcomes 

• Current Performance & Facility Mix 

• Management Options 

• Procurement  

• Extension 

• Consultation approach 

• Considerations 

 

P
age 5

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 N

o. 2



Wider Leisure Offer 

P
age 6



Leisure Provision – Current contract 

Farnborough Leisure Centre 

o 10 court sports hall, 6 rink indoor bowls, 100 station gym and 20 

bike spinning studio, well being rooms, 4 glass door squash 

courts, soft play, 10 lane ten pin, 2 dance studios, multi activity 

room, 33m main pool , learner pool, spectator seating and café 

 

Aldershot Indoor Pools 

o 25m pool, learner pool, spectator seating and 30 station gym 

 

Aldershot Lido  

o Irregular unheated pool, 3 flumes, 1m diving board, café, 2 

floodlit 5 aside pitches in 9 acres of grounds 

 

P
age 7



Work to Date 

• Aldershot Pools Complex 

o Lido Review Working Group, Friends of Aldershot Lido and Leisure & 

Youth Panel – produced vision 

o Lido options appraisal – Sports Consultancy 2014 

(facility options, commercial assessment, consultation) 

o Aldershot Indoor Pools and Lido – soft market testing 2017 

• Farnborough Leisure Centre  

o B3R Architects 2017 

(existing provision, feasibility studies on refurbishment, new build, 

collocations and location on Civic Quarter) 

• Both Venues 

o Condition Surveys – Latest report due this month 

o Sport and Recreation Study – Continuum Sport & Leisure 2014 

(Audit and assessment of need) 

o Places for People –  contract performance, opportunities and extension 

P
age 8



Leisure Management Contract 

High Level Outcomes 

• High level outcome from procurement :  

o Reduce Costs 

o Investment in Facilities – refurbishment or new build 

o Increased participation 

o Reduce risk to the Council 

o Well supported by wide consultation 

o A good facility mix 

P
age 9



Leisure Management Contract 

Performance & Facility Mix 
Farnborough Leisure Centre Visits Income Floor Area sqm Build cost @ £2,500 sqm MRP £50k per £1m 

Health & Fitness Inc. wellbeing 200,000 Above 832 £2.08m £104k 

Swimming plus changing 150,000 Above 1260 £3.15m £157k 

Ten pin bowling 55,000 Above 960 £2.4m £120k 

Sports Hall plus changing 28,000 Below 1350 £3.38m £169k 

Soft Play 23,000 Above 112 £0.28m £14k 

Dance Studio* 55,000 Above 320 £0.8m £40k 

Indoor bowling 14,000 Below 1152 £2.88m £144k 

Squash 7,000 Below 258 £0.65m £33k 

Activity room* 4,000 Below 160 £0.4m £20k 

Creche 3,000 Below 125 £0.31m £16k 

            

Aldershot Indoor Pools           

Health & Fitness 85,000 Above  300  £0.75m  £38k 

Swimming 120,000 Above  1,300  £3.25m  £162k 

Aldershot Lido 

Total (average) 25,000 Below 

P
age 10



Facility Mix - Industry Position 

• Positive supply for water space and sports halls even if Garrison removed.  

• Squash courts meet national standards although low demand 

• Indoor bowls meet national standard 

• Farnborough Leisure Centre 

o Minimum 8 lane pool, teaching pool, spectator seating, 4 court 

sports hall and gym (increase from 100 to 150 stations) 

o Provision / demand position regarding: ten pin bowling, soft play, 

climbing, indoor bowling, crèche, flexible community space and squash. 

Requires careful consideration through public consultation 

o Currently no interest from health providers or library to collocate.  

• Aldershot Indoor Pools and Lido 

o Vision (Task and Finish/FOAL/L&Y) - Integrated facility with outdoor 

heated water, adventure golf, flumes, splash pad / paddling pool, 

playground and fitness centre (increase from 30 to 40 stations).  

o Review level of water provision. 

 

P
age 11



Leisure Management Contract – Soft Market Testing 

 Aldershot Lido 

o Lido to remain in situ due to Lido heritage and consider integration with Aldershot 

indoor pools 

o Retain with price increase and Adventure Golf – possible saving 

o Water theme park c£3m - possible saving (higher risk) 

Aldershot Indoor Pools 

o Retain current building with self funding improvements - possible saving (subject 

to condition survey)  

o New build £7m - possible saving   

 
£5m 2012 

P
age 12



Leisure Management Contract 

Facility Options 

 

 

Farnborough Leisure Centre 

o Could retain current building with self funding 

 improvements saving short term  

 (subject to condition survey – cost increases  

 and reduced income) 

o Refurbishment  

New Build 

o Size and cost depends on facilities mix e.g. 

• Basic new build (just pools, hall and gym) – up to £11m 

• New build - c£18m – provides majority of activities but will need 

some compromise on facility mix 

• Full refurbishment c £23m – likely increased cost  

o Potential £2m Sport England grant – against new build 

o All new  investment will need to be backed by borrowing 

 

 

 

P
age 13



Leisure Centre - location 

• Farnborough Leisure Centre currently in Civic Quarter 

o 600,000 footfall increases viability of town centre providing more leisure 

and social opportunities through linked trips 

o Excellent transport access (buses, train, Cycleways etc.) 

o Planning define as main town centre use and need to apply sequential 

test 

o Extensive search of Borough has not identified another viable site 

o New build - preference for clear site and continued operation 

o Enhances Civic Quarter and additional residential will increase footfall 

 

 

P
age 14



Civic Quarter 

• Identified preferred Investment Partner – will be working 

together on concepts/capacity and agree site specific 

objectives 

• Developing a detailed masterplan – target planning 

submission July 2019 

• Revised timetable identifies stakeholder engagement 

from October onwards 

• Needs to work with Leisure procurement timetable 

P
age 15



Leisure Management Contract 

Management Options 

In - House 

Strengths –  

o Retain profit and benefit from upturn 

in market,  

o Direct control 

Weaknesses 

o Not recover VAT on income or 

NNDR relief 

o Increased costs as staff would 

transfer to Councils terms of 

employment and pension scheme 

o Increase in support costs (HR, 

Finance, health and safety, IT) 

o Increased budget risks to Council on 

income and expenditure particularly  

any downturn in the market 

 

 

Leisure Operator 

Strengths - 

o Will attract competitive bids from 

experienced operators 

o Some risk transfer & greater budget 

stability 

o recover VAT on income and NNDR 

relief 

o Increased economies of scale 

(procurement, marketing, health and 

safety) 

o Group expertise providing innovation 

and industry best practice (health 

and fitness, maintenance, sports 

development) 

Weaknesses 

o Reliance on contract and 

specification to address performance 

concerns 

P
age 16



Leisure Management Contract Procurement Options 

 – to be confirmed once Civic Quarter Masterplan clear 

• Design, Build, Operate & Maintain (DBOM) 

o Contractors experience to balance facility mix, build & operating costs. 

o Single procurement, accountability, risk transfer & cost certainty 

o Attract fewer large bidders as complex procurement 

• Design, Build & separate Operate & Maintain (DB/OM) 

o Need certainty over requirements 

o Two procurements - build and operate with additional costs 

o Separate risk transfers with potential for disputes 

o Attract more smaller bidders for OM 

• Joint Venture Partner (similar to DB/OM) 

o Maximise land values and easier to integrate design of Farnborough Leisure Centre 

within Civic Quarter 

o Seek operator for Farnborough Leisure Centre and opportunities for improvements to  

Aldershot Pools Complex 

• Competitive procedure / dialogue 

o Retain buildings and seek improvements from contractor.  

o Increased risk transfer to Council due to age of facilities 

 

 

 

P
age 17



Contract  Extension 

 
• Farnborough Leisure Centre and Aldershot Pools Complex – 

renewal 1 February 2019 

• Civic Quarter revised masterplan timetable requires extension to 31 

March 2021 in line with financial year  

• Benefits - enables consultation on facilities mix as part of wider 

public engagement on Civic Quarter site 

• Extension with PfP until 2021 still under negotiation. 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 18



Consultation 

• Policy and Projects Advisory Board indicated they could 

have a role in shaping consultation approach for Civic 

Quarter and leisure strategy 

• Needs sufficient time and budget 

• What other Member involvement needed throughout 

consultation and contract procurement process 

P
age 19



• Overall provision  

– Maintain facilities in both Farnborough and Aldershot 

• Wait for Joint Venture input into Civic Quarter 

• Facility mix 

– part of Civic Quarter consultation for Farnborough  

– Aldershot requires input from bidders based on vision 

• Policy and Projects Advisory Board Role 

• Procure based on leisure operator 

• Note approach to any Design and Build finalised after 

Masterplan fixed 

 

 

Leisure Provision 

Considerations for today P
age 20



Consultation on 
proposals to change 
street lighting, 
supported passenger 
transport services 
and the concessionary 
travel scheme
Information Pack
Consultation period: 11 June – 5 August 2018

www.hants.gov.uk
Page 21

AGENDA ITEM No. 3



Contents
Introduction ............................................................................................................................................. 3

Why your views are important ........................................................................................................ 4

Serving Hampshire – Balancing the budget consultation ....................................................... 4

Saving options for Economy, Transport and Environment ...................................................... 5

The County Council’s consultation policy .................................................................................... 5

Part A: Proposed changes to street lighting ................................................................................. 5

 Proposal 1: To switch off street lights for part of the night 
(two or more hours) on residential streets ................................................................................... 6

Part B: Proposed changes to supported passenger transport services 
and the concessionary travel scheme ............................................................................................. 7

 Proposal 2: To make operational changes to the current public bus and 
ferry services which Hampshire County Council supports ..................................................... 8

  Proposal 3: To replace some supported public bus services with alternative 
forms of community transport, such as Taxishares and Call and Go ................................... 9

  Proposal 4: To reduce the amount of printed material and make better 
use of electronic information........................................................................................................... 10

  Proposal 5: To reduce the amount of support available to organisations 
that provide, promote or support transport services ................................................................ 10

  Proposal 6: To remove the use of the Older Person’s Bus Pass on 
Taxishares, Dial-a-Ride and Call and Go services ..................................................................... 11

Appendix one .......................................................................................................................................... 12

Page 22



Introduction
Hampshire County Council is asking for residents’ and stakeholders’ views 
on proposals to change street lighting, supported passenger transport 
services and the concessionary travel scheme.

This consultation opens at midday on 11 June and closes at midnight on 
5 August 2018.

There are two parts to this consultation:

Part A: Proposed changes to street lighting

The County Council is proposing to initially save £230,000 per annum by switching 
off street lights for a minimum of two or more hours per night, every night, on some 
residential streets from April 2019. This consultation seeks views on where and when 
street lighting could be switched off. The County Council’s preferred option is to switch 
off street lights for part of the night in primarily residential streets across the county. 
‘Residential streets’ are generally roads that are used to access housing rather than 
commercial properties, and include housing estate roads and other similar roads.

Part B: Proposed changes to supported passenger transport services and 
the concessionary travel scheme

In February 2018, Hampshire County Council agreed not to remove the financial support 
which it provides for supporting passenger transport services across Hampshire, including 
public bus services, ferries, publications and information and support services. As a direct 
result of the views expressed by local communities, the proposed savings from this area 
have been reduced from £4million to £1.1million by April 2019.

Savings of £1million are also proposed from the national concessionary travel scheme 
which the County Council provides, of which £650,000 has already been secured.

The County Council has also taken the decision to protect the core funding which it 
provides to frontline community transport services (Dial-a-Ride, Call and Go and Minibus 
Group Hire Schemes) whilst at the same time wanting to look at how these services can 
be made more financially sustainable for the future.

Page 23



This consultation concerns a proposal to help make the shortfall against the £1million savings 
target from the concessionary travel scheme, as well as helping to inform the approach 
towards the £1.1million proposed savings from supported passenger transport services.

In order to make these savings, the County Council is proposing: 

• to make operational changes to the current public bus and ferry services which Hampshire
County Council supports, including reducing the frequency and/or days of services

• to replace some supported public bus services with alternative forms of community
transport, such as Taxishares and Call and Go

• to reduce the amount of printed material and make better use of electronic information

• to reduce the amount of support available to organisations that provide, promote or
support transport services

• to remove the use of the Older Person’s Bus Pass on Taxishares, Dial-a-Ride and Call
and Go services, which is a discretionary enhancement to the national concessionary
travel scheme.

Why your views are important

It is important to the County Council that the views of the public, community groups, 
businesses, as well as feedback from other interested stakeholders, are carefully considered.

Your feedback will help to inform a decision by the Executive Member for Environment and 
Transport later in the year when a decision on the proposed changes to street lighting, 
supported passenger transport services and the concessionary travel scheme will be made.

Serving Hampshire – Balancing the budget consultation 

Last year, the County Council undertook a countywide consultation with residents to seek 
views on options for managing the anticipated budget shortfall of £140million by April 2019.

This shortfall is due to national austerity measures, combined with demographic and 
inflationary pressures. With less money available and growing demand for council 
services, especially statutory services, tough decisions will need to be made about what 
the County Council can and cannot do in the future. The Authority is required by law to 
deliver a balanced budget and therefore cannot plan to spend more than is available.

The Serving Hampshire – Balancing the Budget consultation included potential options 
around: reducing and changing services; introducing and increasing charges for some 
services; lobbying Government for legislative change; generating additional income; using 

Page 24



the County Council’s reserves; increasing Council Tax; and changing local government 
arrangements in Hampshire. 

Full details of the consultation can be found on the County Council’s website.

Saving options for Economy, Transport and Environment

The Economy, Transport and Environment Department has a savings target of £15.8million 
by April 2019.

These consultation proposals seek to continue to deliver effective street lighting, supported 
passenger transport services and the concessionary travel scheme, within a reduced budget.

The County Council’s consultation policy 

Hampshire County Council is committed to five principles of consultation: 

• to consult on key issues and proposals
• to consult in good time
• to be inclusive but with clear and appropriate limits
• to consult using clear, simple information and
• to ensure responses are taken into account when decisions are made.

Part A: Proposed changes to street lighting
The County Council is proposing to save £230,000 by switching off street lights for part 
of the night (two or more hours), every night from April 2019. The preferred option is to 
switch off street lights for part of the night in primarily residential streets where crime rates 
are low across the county. ‘Residential streets’ are generally roads that are used to access 
housing rather than commercial properties, and include housing estate roads and other 
similar roads.

It is not proposed to switch off street lights before midnight. These proposals would only 
apply to street lighting which is owned and maintained by the County Council.

What does Hampshire County Council currently spend and provide?

Currently, energy for street lighting costs approximately £2.7million per annum. The main 
cost that the County Council can control is energy consumption. The brightness of all 

Page 25



street lights in Hampshire can be varied by reducing the power, which in turn reduces 
the money spent on energy. Since 2010, the County Council has reduced the brightness 
of street lights, predominantly in residential streets and with the greatest reduction after 
midnight. By the end of 2018, the County Council will have more than halved its energy 
consumption compared with 2010, saving approximately £2million per year. 

There is limited scope to save more money by dimming street lights further, but £230,000 
per annum could be saved by switching off street lights for part of the night. Saving money 
by switching off street lights for a limited period would support the County Council to 
achieve its savings proposals. The alternative would be to make reductions elsewhere. We 
would like to ask you about your preferences for how this reduction could be implemented.

Proposal 1: To switch off street lights for part of the night 
(two or more hours) on residential streets

a) When street lights could be switched off at night

The County Council proposes to turn off street lights on residential streets for part of the 
night for a minimum of two hours, every night, from April 2019. This would mean that some 
areas of the county would have no street lighting for a period of the night time.

If this proposal was implemented, some street lights would be switched off for a minimum 
of two hours every night. Switching street lights off for longer by switching them off earlier 
would allow the County Council to make further savings. The earliest time that street lights 
may be switched off is midnight, as roads are less busy after this time.

b) Where street lights could be switched off

The County Council is proposing to switch off street lights during part of the night in 
residential streets. ‘Residential streets’ account for the majority of street lighting and are 
generally those streets which provide access to housing/housing estates or other similar 
roads, rather than commercial properties. This proposal would mean that some residential 
streets in the county would have no street lighting for part of the night.

This approach offers the main opportunity for savings, but the County Council could 
explore switching off street lights for part of the night in other areas of the county, in 
addition to some residential streets, including: 

• Main roads in built up areas: generally A, B and C class roads. ‘Built up’ areas include
locations which provide frequent access to housing or other developments. Built up
areas will generally be urban in nature, but may also include villages.

• Town and city centre areas: generally commercial centres with shops, restaurants and
other entertainment venues.

Page 26



If the County Council implemented this proposal, decisions would take into account a wide 
range of factors when considering where and when to turn off street lights, including feedback 
from the public, and the needs of businesses or other critical services which may continue to 
require street lighting. Street lights would not be switched off in areas with high crime rates.

This proposal would mean that some other areas of the county, in addition to some 
residential streets, would have no street lighting for part of the night.

Part B: Proposed changes to supported 
passenger transport services and the 
concessionary travel scheme
Some 89% of bus journeys in Hampshire are provided on a commercial basis not 
controlled or funded by the County Council, whilst others are paid for by time-limited 
developer contributions or by district councils. Other services are provided as part of 
statutory Home to School Transport. These are outside of the scope of this consultation.

This consultation, therefore, only includes those public bus services which receive financial 
support from Hampshire County Council. The services which are supported by Hampshire 
County Council are provided in appendix one. Funding for ferry services, publicity and 
information, support services and the use of the Older Person’s Bus Pass on community 
transport services, including Taxishares, are within the scope of this consultation.

What does Hampshire County Council currently spend and provide?

The County Council supports 83 of the 245 bus service routes in Hampshire (often for 
part of the day or route). These account for 11% of bus journeys, with the other 89% 
being made on commercial services in Hampshire which do not receive a subsidy from 
the County Council. The bus services supported by the County Council cater for around 
3.3 million of the 31.5 million bus passenger trips in Hampshire in a year.

Hampshire County Council spends £4million a year on supporting passenger transport 
services across Hampshire, including public bus services, ferries, publications and 
information and support services. We propose to save £1.1million from this area.

The County Council spends £900,000 a year supporting community transport services. 
The County Council has taken the decision to protect the core funding which it provides 
to frontline community transport services (Dial-a-Ride, Call and Go and Minibus Group 
Hire Schemes) whilst at the same time wanting to look at how these services can be made 
more financially sustainable in the future.

Page 27



In addition to this, Hampshire County Council spends £13.4 million a year providing the 
national concessionary travel scheme in Hampshire. The County Council has a legal 
responsibility to issue eligible people with older and disabled person’s passes which 
provide free off peak travel on public bus services. In addition to this the County Council 
offers a number of discretionary enhancements for Hampshire residents. The County 
Council is looking to save £1 million from this area with £650,000 of this already having 
been secured from reduced journeys and scheme administration costs.

Proposed changes to supported passenger transport services in Hampshire (including 
public bus services, ferries, publicity and information and support services)

The County Council is considering four proposals to achieve the £1.1million savings target 
in this area.

Proposal 2: To make operational changes to the current public bus and 
ferry services which Hampshire County Council supports

The County Council could make changes to public bus and ferry services which the 
County Council supports. To do this, we propose to look carefully at trip data about 
passenger journeys, the cost of providing particular journeys or services, and passenger 
and stakeholder feedback.

This proposal may mean a change in the times or days on which public bus and ferry 
services operate on supported routes in the future. This may mean that some routes run 
on fewer days or offer fewer journeys and may be limited to links to the nearest large 
town. No community which currently has a passenger transport service would be left 
without an essential transport link. 

The County Council could change:

• the number of times per day that a supported public bus or ferry service operates

• the number of days per week that a public bus service operates on supported routes

• the days of the week that a public bus service operates on supported routes.

The services which are supported by Hampshire County Council are provided in appendix one.

Page 28



We would like to gather your views on the introduction of a 50p charge for single 
journeys made using an Older Person’s Concessionary Bus Pass on public bus services

The County Council has a statutory responsibility to issue eligible people with Older and 
Disabled Person’s Passes which provide free off peak travel on public bus services.

Subject to a change in law by Parliament, the County Council could ask people with an 
Older Person’s Bus Pass to make a contribution towards the cost of journeys made on 
public bus services. If the legislation was amended, enabling the County Council to charge 
for off peak travel on bus services, then this would mean the additional income raised 
(estimated £4million per year) could help fund public bus services in the future. 

The average cost of a journey undertaken on a public bus service by a bus pass holder in 
Hampshire is £2.16 per single trip.

Proposal 3: To replace some supported public bus services with 
alternative forms of community transport, such as Taxishares and 
Call and Go

• A Taxishare is a timetabled service operated by a taxi that requires advanced booking
with fares similar to bus fares.

• Call and Go is a service that requires advanced booking and serves key destinations in
a district of Hampshire.

These alternative services offer the County Council the opportunity to provide a transport 
service to a local community where it is not cost effective to maintain the existing public 
bus service. The County Council would not take this approach to services which are well-
used throughout the year.

This proposal would mean that a community would not have a public bus service but 
would instead be served by a community transport service such as a Taxishare or Call and 
Go service.

This proposal may also mean a change in the frequency or the days on which the 
alternative form of service operates.

Please note that proposal six proposes that the discount for holders of an Older Person’s 
Bus Pass be removed from journeys made on Taxishares, Dial-a-Ride and Call and Go.

Page 29



Proposal 4: To reduce the amount of printed material and make better use 
of electronic information

The County Council produces and distributes 115,000 printed travel guides and maps 
each year which provides information on bus and train services for areas in Hampshire. 
The County Council also provides real time information displays at 350 bus stops, and 
real time and timetable information through mobile phone apps and on the internet for 
bus stops and services throughout Hampshire. The County Council currently spends 
£500,000 per year doing this, of which £70,000 is spent on printed material.

The County Council could reduce the number of printed travel guides and maps it 
produces or reduce the content of its guides, and instead promote this information 
electronically through its website. Alternatively, the County Council could rely on local 
transport operators to provide this information. 

This proposal would mean that people would need to access transport information 
from the County Council’s website or direct from local transport operators, rather than 
through a printed travel guide. If the content of the travel guides were reduced then some 
information, such as train or coach services, may no longer be included.

Proposal 5: To reduce the amount of support available to organisations 
that provide, promote or support transport services

The County Council provides financial and non-financial assistance to organisations 
who are involved in either providing, promoting or supporting transport services. This is 
provided through: 

• various grant streams for organisations (£30,000 per year).
These can be viewed in more detail on the County Council’s website at:
www.hants.gov.uk/grants/environment-grants

• advice and information on legal matters and good practice, for example on operating
a minibus

• providing training on a range of topics relating to the provision of transport services.

The level of support available could be reduced.

This proposal could mean that some organisations who currently receive support 
would need to find other ways of supporting their activities or look elsewhere for their 
information, advice and training.

Page 30



Proposed changes to the concessionary travel scheme

The County Council is proposing to save £1million from the administration of the national 
concessionary travel scheme, £650,000 has already been achieved, and the proposal set 
out below is intended to contribute to the remaining savings.

The national statutory scheme provides eligible older or disabled residents with a pass 
entitling them to free off peak travel (09:30-23:00 Monday to Friday and at anytime 
weekends and public holidays) on public bus services.

Proposal 6: To remove the use of the Older Person’s Bus Pass on 
Taxishares, Dial-a-Ride and Call and Go services

People with an Older Person’s Bus Pass can use this to travel for free on Taxishare 
services and for half fare on most journeys on Dial-a-Ride and Call and Go services 
in Hampshire. This is in addition to free public bus travel and is funded by Hampshire 
County Council as an enhancement to the statutory scheme for Hampshire residents. This 
provides Hampshire residents with a concession on a service that is already subsidised by 
Hampshire County Council and its funding partners.

The County Council could remove the discount for holders of an Older Person’s Bus Pass 
on Taxishare, Dial-a-Ride and Call and Go services. This would mean that people would no 
longer be able to use their Older Person’s Bus Pass on these services and would instead 
have to pay a fare for the service. This could mean passengers using a Taxishare service 
paying a subsidised fare of £2.50 or £3.50 per single journey. Dial-a-Ride and Call and Go 
users would on average pay £4.50 per return journey.

The use of the Older Person’s Bus Pass on Taxishares, Dial-a-Ride and Call and Go 
services costs the County Council £240,000 per year in addition to the cost of providing 
the service.

This proposal would not affect the times and days on which existing Taxishare, Dial-a-Ride 
and Call and Go services operate.

It would also not affect people with a Disabled Person’s Bus Pass, Companion Bus Pass 
or Travel Vouchers who would still be able to use these on Taxishare, Dial-a-Ride and Call 
and Go services as they do now.

Page 31



Appendix one

Service Route
Annual cost 
to Hampshire 
County Council

Annual 
passenger 
journeys

Aldershot, Farnborough and Fleet area services
7 Hartley Wintney to Aldershot £168,703 120,145
9 Cove to Farnborough £19,396 18,786

41/42
Ash to Farnborough 
(part developer contributions 
and Surrey County Council)

£97,183 29,444

Andover area services

5 Thruxton to Andover 
(part funded by school transport) £55,177 27,241

7/7A Andover to Newbury £50,086 47,321

10 Picket Twenty to Andover 
(developer contributions) £85,527 76,203

12 Sheep Fayre to Andover 
(developer contributions)

£80,034
17,023

13 Picket Piece to Andover 
(developer contributions) 26,444

14 East Anton to Andover 
(developer contributions) £227,602 40,825

15 Stockbridge to Andover 
(developer contributions)

£82,279

17,049

16 Broughton to Winchester 
(not school journeys) (dev cons) 6,394

87
Salisbury to Andover 
(developer contributions) 
(Middle Wallop to Andover 
supported)

12,120

C1/C5/C5A Cango – Kimpton to Andover

£115,693

8,069

C3/C8 Cango – St Mary Bourne to 
Andover 7,256

C4 Cango – Barton Stacey to Andover 1,624
C6 Cango – Vernham Dean to Andover 1,579

86
Whitchurch to Winchester 
(Journeys via Barton Stacey during 
school holidays)

£7,681 802

Page 32



Service Route
Annual cost 
to Hampshire 
County Council

Annual 
passenger 
journeys

Basingstoke area services

4 Basingstoke to Chineham 
(developer contributions) £233,303 101,555

12 Hatch Warren to Basingstoke £48,583 124,223

14 / 15 14 Basingstoke to Tadley and 15 
Basingstoke to South View £132,737 122,010

74 Overton Local Service £13,648 6,240

76 Andover to Basingstoke 
(late evening journeys supported) £11,387 8,856

C41 Basingstoke to Alresford £36,490 3,851
Basingstoke and Deane Council directly supports services 3B, 16, 55, 59 and the 
Centre Shuttle. They also support late evening journeys on town routes 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8 
and 11 and Sunday services on routes 2, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 11. Basingstoke and Deane will be 
reviewing their transport contracts later in 2018.*

Eastleigh area services

X6/X7 
Eastleigh to Hiltingbury 
(partial Eastleigh Borough Council) 
(supported Chandlers Ford to 
Hiltingbury)

£13,133 48,578

X9
Eastleigh to Bishops Waltham 
(supported Allbrook to Waltham 
Chase)

£123,120

108,153

X10
Bishops Waltham to Southampton 
(supported Bishops Waltham to 
Moorgreen)

43,278

X15 Eastleigh to Hamble 
(partial Eastleigh Borough Council) £27,958 14,674

E1 Eastleigh to Winchester
£70,568 107,909

E2 Eastleigh to Winchester
Eastleigh Borough Council directly supports late evening journeys on services 2, 3, 6, 
X7 and X8. They also support the Sunday service on routes X4, X7 and X9. * 

East Hampshire area services

13
Liphook to Basingstoke 
(supported Liphook to Alton on 
Monday to Friday)

£40,428 114,350

18/618
Aldershot to Haslemere 
(part funded by school transport) 
(supported Whitehill to Haslemere)

£130,002 127,028

Page 33



Service Route
Annual cost 
to Hampshire 
County Council

Annual 
passenger 
journeys

East Hampshire area services (continued)
X17 Bishops Waltham to Petersfield £7,695 2,288

28 Bordon Local Service 
(funded by Government Grant) £52,134 5,490

38 Alton to Petersfield £109,095 57,946
71 Froxfield to Petersfield £5,575 1,495
94 Buriton to Petersfield £58,657 21,949
206 Alton to Bentley

£16,207 7,582
208 Alton to Meadstead
240 Ropley to Alresford £13,954 4,160
250 Liphook Local Service £10,828 3,666

Fareham and Gosport area services

11 Fareham to Alverstoke 
(Monday to Friday only) £43,325 36,495

20 Fareham to Wickham £78,396 56,777
21/21A Fareham to Hill Head £48,384 60,148
28/28A Fareham to Whiteley £99,993 50,917

Havant area services

27 Rowlands Castle to Emsworth 
(developer contributions) £79,912 35,382

D1/D2 Waterlooville to Hambledon 
(developer contributions) £120,989 85,601

New Forest area services
H1/H2 Netley View to Applemore Tesco

£79,105
9,857

T3/T4 Cadnam to Totton 9,098

X2
Lymington to Bournemouth 
(partial Dorset County Council) 
(Gore Road New Milton to Walkford 
supported)

£20,785 14,296

6 Lymington to Southampton
(only certain journeys supported) £68,904 57,781

C32/C33 New Milton to Lymington £96,770 13,987

49 Damerham to Salisbury 
(partial Wiltshire Council) £3,368 1,612

Page 34



Service Route
Annual cost 
to Hampshire 
County Council

Annual 
passenger 
journeys

New Forest area services (continued)

112 Hythe/Beaulieu to Lymington 
(part funded by school Transport) £74,570 18,798

125 Christchurch to Ringwood 
(partial Dorset County Council) £27,189 9,026

119 Lymington to New Milton
£62,356

42,405
191 Chatsworth Park to New Milton 6,252
193 Barton-on-Sea to New Milton 3,361
Hythe Ferry Hythe Pier to Southampton £77,062 176,433

Romsey area services

5
Romsey to Eastleigh 
(certain early morning and evening 
journeys only)

£8,721 12,193

X7R
Southampton to Salisbury 
(partial Wiltshire Council) (Romsey 
to Salisbury supported)

£24,111 56,316

35 Braishfield to Romsey 
(part funded by school transport) £57,046 15,348

36 Lockerley to Romsey £18,981 724

39 Nomansland to Romsey 
(partial Wiltshire Council) £18,981 2,240

Winchester area services
6A Abbotts Barton to Winchester

£19,372
1,671

63 Owslebury to Winchester 4,398
46 Winchester to North Baddesley £46,148 15,358

67
Winchester to Petersfield 
(part funded by school transport) 
(some school journeys are 
commercially operated)

£196,200 62,911

95/96 East Stratton to Winchester 
(only Tuesdays and Thursdays) £16,006 845

Winchester Town Forum supports the late night services on routes 3 and 5A. *

*These services are considered outside the scope of this consultation

Page 35



16

How to have your say

You are invited to give your views on these proposals. Please read the information 
contained in this document carefully. 

This consultation will run for eight weeks from 11 June to 5 August. 
Please note that responses received after this date will not be included in the 
findings report. 

The consultation Response Form is available to download or complete online at 
www.hants.gov.uk/consultations

You can also email your Response Form directly to Hampshire County Council using the 
email address: environment.bus.review@hants.gov.uk

To obtain a paper copy of the Information Pack and Response Form, or to request 
this information in another format such as large print, audio or Braille, or if you have 
any queries about the consultation, please contact the County Council by email to: 
environment.bus.review@hants.gov.uk or call 0300 555 1388*

Please return your completed consultation Response Form in the Freepost envelope 
provided. If you do not have a Freepost envelope, please post your response to: Freepost 
HAMPSHIRE and write ‘Passenger Transport Group’ on the back of the envelope.

* 0300 calls are usually included in most landline and mobile call packages, and if not,  
are charged at no more than a local rate call.

Page 36



Consultation on proposals to change street lighting, supported 
passenger transport services and the concessionary travel scheme 
in Hampshire

Introduction
Hampshire County Council is asking for residents’ and stakeholders’ views on proposals to 
change street lighting, supported passenger transport services and the concessionary travel 
scheme. 

This consultation opens at midday on 11 June and closes at midnight on 5 August 2018.

Please read the accompanying Information Pack carefully before completing this Response Form. 

The findings from the consultation will be published and presented to the Executive Member for 
Environment and Transport later in the year when a decision on the proposed changes to street 
lighting, supported passenger transport services and the concessionary travel scheme will be 
made. 

 Your data
Hampshire County Council is seeking to your views and comments and other information about you through this 
response form in response to proposed changes to street lighting, supported local bus services and the 
concessionary travel scheme. The information you provide in this response form is being collected for the 
performance of a task carried out in the public interest in the exercise of official authority vested in the County 
Council, and for reasons of substantial public interest. The data provided will only be used to understand views on the 
proposed changes set out in this consultation. 

All individuals' responses will be kept confidential and will not be shared with third party processors, but responses 
from organisations may be published in full. All data will remain within the UK. Responses will be anonymised and 
summarised in a public consultation findings report on the County Council’s website. Responses will be stored 
securely and retained for one year following the end of the consultation before being deleted or destroyed.

Please see our Data Protection webpage www.hants.gov.uk/privacy for further details about how the County Council 
uses and handles data. You can contact the County Council's Data Protection Officer at 
data.protection@hants.gov.uk. If you have a concern about the way we are collecting or using your personal data, 
you should raise your concern with us in the first instance or directly to the Information Commissioners Office at 
https://ico.org.uk/concerns/

Page 37

http://www.hants.gov.uk/privacy
mailto:data.protection@hants.gov.uk.
https://ico.org.uk/concerns/


About you
Q.1 Are you responding to this questionnaire as an individual or on behalf of an 
organisation or group?

I am responding as an 
individual....Please proceed to Q.2

I am responding on behalf of an 
organisation or group....Please complete 
the section below

Please provide details of your organisation or group.

The name and details of your organisation, group or business may appear in the final report, and the information you provide 
may be subject to publication or release to other parties or to disclosure regimes such as the Freedom of Information Act 2000.

Name of your organisation or group: 

Your role in the organisation or group: 

Address of your organisation or group: 

Which area of the county does your organisation or group operate in? (Please tick all that 
apply)

Aldershot, Farnborough 
and Fleet
Andover
Basingstoke

East Hampshire 
Eastleigh 
Fareham and Gosport
Havant

New Forest
Romsey
Winchester 
Other

For 'Other' please specify: 

Page 38



Our proposals
There are two parts to this consultation:

Part A: Proposed changes to street lighting
The County Council is proposing to initially save £230,000 per year by switching off street lights 
for part of the night (two or more hours), every night, from April 2019. The County Council’s 
preferred option is to switch off street lights for part of the night in residential streets across the 
county. 

Part B: Proposed changes to supported passenger transport services and the 
concessionary travel scheme
In February 2018, Hampshire County Council agreed not to remove the financial support which it 
provides for supporting passenger transport services across Hampshire including public bus 
services, ferries, publications and information and support services. As a direct result of the views 
expressed by local communities, the proposed savings from this area have been reduced from 
£4million to £1.1million by April 2019. 

Savings of £1million are also proposed from the national concessionary travel scheme which the 
County Council provides, of which £650,000 has already been secured.

The County Council has also taken the decision to protect the core funding which it provides to 
frontline community transport services (Dial-a-Ride, Call and Go and Minibus Group Hire 
Schemes) whilst at the same time wanting to look at how these services can be made more 
financially sustainable for the future.

This consultation concerns a proposal to help make the savings shortfall against the £1million 
savings target from the concessionary travel scheme, as well as helping to inform the approach 
towards the £1.1million proposed savings from supported passenger transport services.

In order to make these savings, the County Council is proposing: 

·  to make operational changes to the current public bus and ferry services which Hampshire 
County Council supports, including reducing the frequency and/or days of services. A list of 
services which are supported by the County Council are provided in appendix one
·  to replace some supported public bus services with alternative forms of community transport, 
such as Taxishares and Call and Go
·  to reduce the amount of printed material and make better use of electronic information
·  to reduce the amount of support available to organisations that provide, promote or support 
transport services
·  to remove the use of the Older Person’s Bus Pass on Taxishares, Dial-a-Ride and Call and Go 
services, which is a discretionary enhancement to the national concessionary travel scheme.

Q.2 Which parts of this consultation would you like to respond to?

Part A: Proposed changes to street lighting. Please proceed to Part A overleaf.

Part B: Proposed changes to supported passenger transport services and the 
concessionary travel scheme. Please proceed to Part B (Q.7). 

Page 39



Part A: Proposed changes to street lighting
The County Council is proposing to save £230,000 by switching off street lights for part of the 
night, for two or more hours, every night from April 2019. 

Please see pages 5-7 of the Information Pack for further details. 

Proposal 1: To switch off street lights for part of the night (two or more hours) 
on residential streets

a) When street lights could be switched off at night

The County Council proposes to turn off street lights on residential streets for part of the night for 
a minimum of two hours, every night, from April 2019. Switching street lights off for longer by 
switching them off earlier would allow the County Council to make further savings. The earliest 
time that street lights may be switched off is midnight, as roads are less busy after this time. 

If this proposal was implemented, some street lights would be switched off for a minimum of two 
hours every night, leaving those areas of the county with no street lighting for a period of the night 
time.

Q.3 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to turn off street lights for a 
minimum of two hours a night, every night? (Please tick one box only)  

Strongly 
disagree Disagree

Neither agree 
nor disagree Agree Strongly agree Not sure

If you have ticked 'agree' or 'strongly agree' for Q.3, please answer questions 4 and 5 below. 

Q.4 Please tell us how many hours would you prefer street lights to be switched off during 
the night? (Please tick one box only)  

2 hours
3 hours
4 hours

No opinion
Other number of hours 

For 'Other number of hours' please enter your 
preferred number of hours for streetlights to be 
switched off:

Q.5 What is your preferred switch off time? (Please tick one box only)  

00:00 (midnight)
01:00
02:00

No opinion
Another time

For 'Another time' please enter your preferred street 
light switch off time:

Page 40



b) Where street lights could be switched off

The County Council is proposing to switch off street lights during part of the night in residential 
streets as they account for the majority of street lighting. This would mean that some residential 
streets in the county would have no street lighting for part of the night.

The County Council could explore switching off street lights for part of the night in other areas of 
the county, in addition to residential streets. This would mean that some other areas of the county 
would also have no street lighting for part of the night. Street lights would not be switched off in 
areas with high crime rates.

Q.6 To what extent do you with agree or disagree with street lights being switched off for a 
minimum of two hours per night in the following areas in the county? (Please tick one box 
per option)  

Residential streets: ‘Residential 
streets’ are generally those streets 
which access housing rather than 
commercial properties and include 
housing estate roads and other similar 
roads.

Strongly 
disagree Disagree

Neither 
agree nor 
disagree Agree

Strongly 
agree Not sure

Main roads in built up areas: ‘Main 
roads’ are generally A, B and C class 
roads. ‘Built up’ areas include 
locations which provide frequent 
access to housing or other 
developments. Built up areas will 
generally be urban in nature, but may 
also include villages. 

Town and city centre areas: ‘Town 
and city centre’ areas are generally 
commercial centres with shops, 
restaurants and other entertainment 
venues.

Page 41



Part B: Proposed changes to supported passenger transport 
services and the concessionary travel scheme
This consultation only includes those public bus services which receive financial support from 
Hampshire County Council. Funding for ferry services, publicity and information, support services 
and the use of the Older Person’s Bus Pass on community transport services, including 
Taxishares, are within the scope of this consultation. 

Proposed changes to supported passenger transport services in Hampshire 
(including public bus services, ferries, publicity and information and support 
services)

The County Council is considering four proposals to achieve £1.1million savings from this area. 
We would like to ask you what you think of these proposed changes and what impact they might 
have on you or your members if they went ahead.

Proposal 2: To make operational changes to the current public bus and ferry 
services which Hampshire County Council supports

The County Council could make changes to public bus and ferry services which the County 
Council supports. To do this, we propose to look carefully at trip data about passenger journeys, 
the cost of providing particular journeys or services, and passenger and stakeholder feedback. 

To inform potential decisions on changes to individual public bus or ferry services, we would like 
to ask you questions about the supported services you may use and why you use them, or the 
services your members use and why they use them. 

To see which services are supported by Hampshire County Council, including the annual cost, 
and the number of annual passenger journeys of each supported service, please see appendix 
one.

Q.7 Do you or your members currently use any of these services? (Please tick one box only)  

Yes.... Please answer the questions 
given below

No.... Please proceed to Q.16

Q.8 Which service do you or your members use most often? (Please write in the box below, 
stating the service number if known)

Q.9 Thinking about this service, how often do you or your members use it? (Enter an 
average number in one box only)

Number of times a week:

Number of times a month:

Number of times a year:

Page 42



Q.10 Thinking about this service, what is your or your members' primary reason for travel? 
(Please tick one box only)  

Medical/health appointments
Non-food shopping e.g. clothing
Food shopping
School/education
Employment/work related training

Social visits to family/friends
Leisure/recreational facilities
Community/day centres
Other

For 'Other', please specify: 

Q.11 Which days do you or your members usually travel on this particular service? (Please 
tick all that apply)

Please note that the County Council does not support bus services which operate in the evenings 
or on Sundays. 

Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday

Friday
Saturday
Sunday

Q.12 Which times of day do you or your members usually travel on this particular service? 
(Please tick all that apply) 

Up to 09:29 09:30 – 12:29 12:30 – 15:29 15:30 – 18:29 18:30 onwards

Q.13 Thinking about this service, how would you or your members make your journeys if 
this service was reduced? (Please tick all that apply) 

Walking 
Cycling
Own vehicle 
Private taxi
Train
Lift with friends/relatives or neighbours
Car sharing scheme

Alternative Community Transport 
services (e.g. Dial-a-Ride/Call and Go)
Use local services (e.g. Local shops)
Use internet/online shopping services
Travel less frequently
No alternative available
Other

For 'Other' please specify: 

Page 43



Q.14 Thinking about the service you use most often, would you or your members prefer 
either: (Please tick one box only)

A frequent service to one major location e.g. Eastleigh town centre
A less frequent service to more than one major location e.g. Eastleigh and Southampton 
town centres

Q.15 Thinking about the service you use most often, would you or your members prefer 
either: (Please tick one box only)

A frequent service that operates on 
fewer days      

A less frequent service that operates on 
more days

Proposal 2: To make operational changes to the current public bus and ferry 
services which Hampshire County Council supports (continued)

The County Council could change:
·  the number of times per day that a supported public bus or ferry service operates
·  the number of days per week that a public bus service operates on supported routes
·  the days of the week that a public bus service operates on supported routes

The bus and ferry services which Hampshire County Council supports are set out in appendix 
one. 

This proposal may mean a change in the times or days on which public bus and ferry services 
operate on supported routes in the future. This may mean that some routes run on fewer days or 
offer fewer journeys and may be limited to links to the nearest large town. No community which 
currently has a passenger transport service would be left without an essential transport link. 

Please see page 8 of the Information Pack for further details. 

Q.16 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to reduce the number of 
times per day that a supported service operates? (Please tick one box only)  

Strongly 
disagree Disagree

Neither agree 
nor disagree Agree Strongly agree Not sure

Q.17 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to reduce the number of 
days per week/days of the week that a supported service operates? (Please tick one box 
only)  

Strongly 
disagree Disagree

Neither agree 
nor disagree Agree Strongly agree Not sure

Q.18 If Hampshire County Council reduced either the frequency or the days on which 
supported services operate, what would the impact be on you, or your organisation or 
group? (Please write in the box below)

Page 44



We would like to gather your views on the introduction of a 50p charge for single 
journeys made using an Older Person's Concessionary Bus Pass on public bus 
services

The County Council has a statutory responsibility to issue eligible people with Older and Disabled 
Person’s Passes which provide free off peak travel on public bus services. 

Subject to a change in the law by Parliament, the County Council could seek to introduce a 
50p charge for single journeys made using an Older Person’s Concessionary Bus Pass on public 
bus services.

Without a change in the legislation the County Council is unable to ask people with a bus pass to 
make a contribution towards the cost of journeys made on public bus services. If the legislation 
was amended providing the County Council with the ability to charge for off peak travel on bus 
services, then this would mean the additional income raised (estimated £4million per year) could 
help fund public bus services in the future. 

The average cost of a journey undertaken on a public bus service by a bus pass holder in 
Hampshire is £2.16 per single trip.

Please see page 9 of the Information Pack for further details. 

Q.19 If the law was changed, to what extent would you agree or disagree with the 
introduction of a 50p charge for single journeys made using an Older Person's 
Concessionary Bus Pass on public bus services? (Please tick one box only)  

Strongly 
disagree Disagree

Neither agree 
nor disagree Agree Strongly agree Not sure

If you are responding to this consultation as an individual, please complete the questions below. 

If you are responding to this consultation on behalf or an organisation or group, please proceed to 
Q.23.

Q.20 Do you have a concessionary bus pass/vouchers? (Please tick one box only) 

No....Go to Q.23
Yes – Older Person’s Bus Pass... Go to 
Q.21
Yes – Disabled Person’s Bus Pass.... Go 
to Q.23

Yes – Companion Bus Pass.... Go to 
Q.23
Yes – Travel vouchers.... Go to Q.23

Q.21 If you currently travel free using an Older Person’s Concessionary Bus Pass on public 
bus services would you be willing to pay 50p per single journey, if the County Council was 
allowed to ask you to do this? (Please tick one box only)

Yes – I would be willing to pay 50p....Go 
to Q.23

No – I would not be willing to pay 50p....
Go to Q.22

Page 45



Q.22 Would you be willing to pay 50p per single journey when using your Older Person’s 
Concessionary Bus Pass on a public bus service, provided that the money raised from this 
was used to: (Please tick one per row)

Retain public bus services which would otherwise 
be reduced because of the need to make savings

Yes – I would be 
willing to pay 50p

No – I would not be 
willing to pay 50p 

Allow the use of Older Person’s Bus Pass on public 
bus services from 09:00 (currently 09:30)

Retain the use of the Older Person’s Bus Pass on 
Taxishares, Dial-a-Ride and Call and Go services

Q.23 If the law changed, and the County Council was able to introduce a 50p charge for 
single journeys made using an Older Person’s Concessionary Bus Pass on public bus 
services, what would the impact be on you or your members? (Please write in the box below)

Proposal 3: To replace some supported public bus services with alternative 
forms of community transport, such as Taxishares and Call and Go

·  A Taxishare is a timetabled service operated by a taxi that requires advanced booking with 
fares similar to bus fares. 

·  Call and Go is a service that requires advanced booking and serves key destinations in a 
district of Hampshire.

This proposal would mean that a community would not have a public bus service but would 
instead be served by a community transport service such as a Taxishare or Call and Go service. 
This proposal may also mean a reduction in the frequency or the days on which the alternative 
form of service operates. The County Council would not take this approach to services which are 
well-used throughout the year.

Please note: Proposal six in this consultation proposes that the discount for holders of an Older 
Person’s Bus Pass should be removed for journeys made on Taxishares, Dial-a-Ride and Call and 
Go.

Please see page 9 of the Information Pack for further details. 

Q.24 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to replace some supported 
public bus services with alternative forms of community transport, such as Taxishares and 
Call and Go? (Please tick one box only)  

Strongly 
disagree Disagree

Neither agree 
nor disagree Agree Strongly agree Not sure

Page 46



Q.25 If the County Council replaced the supported public bus service that you or your 
members use with an alternative form of community transport (such as Taxishares and Call 
and Go), what would the impact be on you, or your organisation or group? (Please write in 
the box below)

Proposal 4: To reduce the amount of printed material and make better use of 
electronic information

The County Council could reduce the amount of printed material, including travel guides and 
maps, or reduce the content of its guides, and instead promote this information through its 
website. Alternatively, the County Council could rely on local transport operators to provide this 
information. 

This proposal would mean that people would need to access transport information from the 
County Council’s website or direct from local transport operators, rather than through a printed 
travel guide. If the contents of the travel guides were reduced then some information, such as 
train or coach services, may no longer be included.

Please see page 10 of the Information Pack for further details. 

Q.26 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to reduce the amount of 
printed material and make better use of electronic information? (Please tick one box only)  

Strongly 
disagree Disagree

Neither agree 
nor disagree Agree Strongly agree Not sure

Q.27 How do you or your members currently find out information about bus and train 
services? (Please tick all that apply)

Printed travel publications
Google transit website
Travel guides, maps and timetables on 
Hantsweb
Traveline website/ mobile app
Traveline phone line 
Bus operator mobile app

Contacting bus operator directly
My Journey Hampshire website
National Rail website
South Western Railway website
Internet search engine
Train Tracker (call or text)
Other

For 'Other' please specify:

Page 47



Q.28 Which of the following publications produced by the County Council have you or your 
members used in the past year? (Please tick all that apply)

Alton, Bordon and Petersfield travel 
guide
Andover travel guide
Basingstoke map
Eastleigh and Hedge End travel guide
Farnborough and Fleet travel guide
Hampshire map

Havant travel guide
New Forest travel guide
Romsey map
Winchester and Alresford travel guide
Other
None of these

For 'Other' please specify: 

If you have used one of the publications listed in Q.28, please answer Q.29. If you have not used 
any of those publications, or have used any other publications, please proceed to Q.30. 

Q.29 Which section(s) of the travel guide produced by Hampshire County Council do you 
or your members use? (Please tick all that apply)  

Bus times   Taxishare times   
Train times   Coach times
Other community transport information    Ferry information    
None of these

Q.30 If the County Council reduced the amount of printed material and made better use of 
electronic information, what would the impact be on you, or your organisation or group? 
(Please write in the box below)

Proposal 5: To reduce the amount of support available to organisations that 
provide, promote or support transport services 

This proposal would reduce the level of support available from Hampshire County Council for 
organisations who are involved in either providing, promoting or supporting transport services.

This proposal could mean that organisations currently receiving support from the County Council 
would need to find other ways of supporting their activities or look elsewhere for their information, 
advice and training.

Please see page 10 of the Information Pack for further details.

Page 48



Q.31 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to reduce the amount of 
support available to organisations that provide, promote or support transport services? 
(Please tick one box only)

Strongly 
disagree Disagree

Neither agree 
nor disagree Agree Strongly agree Not sure

Q.32 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposed reduction of the following 
types of support available to organisations that provide, promote or support transport 
services? (Please tick only one in each row) 

Passenger transport grants

Strongly 
disagree Disagree

Neither 
agree nor 
disagree Agree

Strongly 
agree Not sure

Advice and information on legal 
matters and good practice

Training provided by Hampshire 
County Council's Passenger 
Transport Group

If you are responding to this consultation on behalf of an organisation, please answer Q.33 and 
Q.34 below. 

If you are responding to this consultation as an individual, please proceed to Q.35

Q.33 Has your organisation or group ever made use of any of the following support? 
(Please tick all that apply)

Yes - Passenger transport grants (either 
applied for or received)
Yes - Advice and information on legal 
matters and good practice (either face to 
face, over telephone, email or 
publications)

Yes - Training provided by Hampshire 
County Council's Passenger Transport 
Group (including community transport)
No

Q.34 If the County Council reduced the amount of support available, what would the impact 
be on your organisation or group? (Please write in the box below)

Page 49



Q.35 Please indicate which of the following proposals, relating to supported passenger 
transport services, is your first, second, third and fourth choice by ticking one box for each 
proposal. (Please only tick one box per column)

Proposal 2: To make operational changes to the 
current public bus and ferry services which 
Hampshire County Council supports

First choice
Second 
choice

Third 
choice

Fourth 
choice

Proposal 3: To replace some supported public 
bus services with alternative forms of community 
transport, such as Taxishares and Call and Go

Proposal 4: To reduce the amount of printed 
material and make better use of electronic 
information

Proposal 5: To reduce the amount of support 
available to organisations that provide, promote 
or support transport services 

Proposed changes to the concessionary travel scheme
The County Council is proposing to save £1million from the administration of the national 
concessionary travel scheme, £650,000 has already been achieved, and the proposal set out 
below is intended to contribute to the remaining savings. 

The national statutory scheme provides eligible older or disabled residents with a pass entitling 
them to free off peak travel (09:30-23:00 Monday to Friday and at anytime weekends and public 
holidays) on public bus services.

Please see page 11 of the Information Pack for further details.

Proposal 6: To remove the use of the Older Person’s Bus Pass on Taxishares, 
Dial-a-Ride and Call and Go services

The County Council could remove the discount for holders of an Older Person's Bus Pass on 
Taxishare, Dial-a-Ride and Call and Go services.

This proposal would mean that people would no longer be able to use their Older Person’s Bus 
Pass on these services and would instead have to pay a fare for the service. This could mean 
passengers using a Taxishare service paying a subsidised fare of £2.50 or £3.50 per single 
journey. Dial-a-Ride and Call and Go users would on average pay £4.50 per return journey.

This proposal would not affect the times and days on which existing Taxishare, Dial-a-Ride and 
Call and Go services operate. 

It would also not affect people with a Disabled Person’s Bus Pass, Companion Bus Pass or Travel 
Vouchers who would still be able to use these on Taxishare, Dial-a-Ride and Call and Go 
services, as they do now. 

Page 50



Q.36 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to remove the use of the 
Older Person's Bus Pass on Taxishares, Dial-a-Ride and Call and Go services? (Please tick 
one box only)  

Strongly 
disagree Disagree

Neither agree 
nor disagree Agree Strongly agree Not sure

If you are responding to this consultation as an individual, please answer Q.37

If you are responding to this consultation on behalf of an organisation or group, please proceed to 
Q.38

Q.37 Which of the following services do you currently use? (Please tick all that apply)

Taxishare Dial-a-Ride
Call and Go None of the above
Other

For 'Other' please specify: 

Q.38 If the County Council removed the use of the Older Person's Bus Pass on Taxishares, 
Dial-a-Ride and Call and Go services, what would the impact be on you, or your 
organisation or group? (Please write in the box below)

Page 51



Further comments
Q.39 Please describe what, if any, impact, the proposals contained in this consultation 
could have on: 
·  you or your family 
·  people you know or work with 
·  your organisation or group.

Please write in the box below. Please do not include any personal details in your response. 

If you need more space, please continue on a separate sheet and include this with your 
response.

Q.40 If you have any alternative suggestions to the proposals in this consultation on how 
the County Council could make savings from street lighting services, supported passenger 
transport services and the concessionary travel scheme, then please provide these in the 
box below. 

Please write in the box below. Please do not include any personal details in your response.

If you need more space, please continue on a separate sheet and include this with your 
response.

Page 52



If you are responding to this consultation on behalf of an organisation or group, please proceed to 
Q.47 

If you are responding to this consultation as an inidividual, please proceed to the next section, 
'More about you' 

More about you
Hampshire County Council is committed to improving its services, eliminating unlawful 
discrimination, and promoting equality of opportunity for all people. 

We would be grateful if you could answer the following questions so that we can analyse the 
results overall and by different groups of people. This will help us to understand the impacts of 
the consultation proposals and the views on them by different groups. 

All of the questions in this section are optional.

Q.41 Please provide the first five digits of your postcode: (Please write in the box below)

Providing your post code is optional. It would help us in knowing where services are required if you could provide the first five 
digits of your post code. In this situation, by providing your partial postcode you are consenting to the County Council using this 
information to understand views on the proposals from different areas of the county.

Q.42 Are you? (Please tick one only)

Female
Male

Other
Prefer not to say

For 'Other', please describe in the box below: 

Q.43 What was your age on your last birthday? (Please tick one only)

Under 16
16 to 24
25 to 34

35 to 44
45 to 54
55 to 64

65 to 74
75 to 84
85 or over

Prefer not to say

Q.44 Are your day-to-day activities limited because of a health problem or disability which 
has lasted, or is expected to last, at least 12 months? (Please tick one only)

Yes, a lot
Yes, a little

No
Prefer not to say

Q.45 Does your disability restrict your use of public transport? (Please tick one only)

Yes, a lot
Yes, a little

No
Prefer not to say

Page 53



Q.46 What is your total annual household income, from all sources, before taxes and other 
deductions? (Please tick one only)

Up to £10,000
£10,001 to £20,000
£20,001 to £30,000
£30,001 to £40,000
£40,001 to £50,000
£50,001 to £60,000
£60,001 to £70,000

£70,001 to £80,000
£80,001 to £90,000
£90,001 to £100,000
£100,001 or over
Don't know
Prefer not to say

Q.47 Finally, to help us to improve access to future consultations, please tell us where you 
first heard about this consultation: (Please tick all that apply)

Website
On the bus
Through a Passenger Transport Forum
Word of mouth

On social media (e.g. Facebook, Twitter, 
etc.)
Reported in the press (e.g. radio, 
newspaper)
Consultation poster
Other

For 'Other', please specify: 

Thank you
Thank you for taking the time to respond to this consultation.

This consultation will close at 23:59 on Sunday, 5 August 2018. 

Your feedback will help to inform the County Council's decisions on the proposed changes to 
street lighting, supported passenger transport services and the concessionary travel scheme. The 
findings from this consultation will be published and presented to the Executive Member for  
Environment and Transport later in the year. 

Please use the Freepost envelope provided to return your response to Hampshire County 
Council. If you do not have one, please send your response back to us by writing ‘Freepost 
HAMPSHIRE' on the front of an envelope, and ‘Passenger Transport Group’ written on the back.

Page 54



Service Route
Annual cost 
to Hampshire 
County 
Council

Annual 
passenger 
journeys

Aldershot, Farnborough and Fleet area services
7 Hartley Wintney to Aldershot £168,703 120,145
9 Cove to Farnborough £19,396 18,786

41/42
Ash to Farnborough 
(part developer contributions 
and Surrey County Council)

£97,183 29,444

Andover area services

5 Thruxton to Andover 
(part funded by school transport) £55,177 27,241

7/7A Andover to Newbury £50,086 47,321

10 Picket Twenty to Andover 
(developer contributions) £85,527 76,203

12 Sheep Fayre to Andover 
(developer contributions)

£80,034
17,023

13 Picket Piece to Andover 
(developer contributions) 26,444

14 East Anton to Andover 
(developer contributions) £227,602 40,825

15 Stockbridge to Andover 
(developer contributions)

£82,279

17,049

16 Broughton to Winchester 
(not school journeys) (dev cons) 6,394

87
Salisbury to Andover 
(developer contributions) 
(Middle Wallop to Andover 
supported)

12,120

C1/C5/C5A Cango – Kimpton to Andover

£115,693

8,069

C3/C8 Cango – St Mary Bourne to 
Andover 7,256

C4 Cango – Barton Stacey to Andover 1,624
C6 Cango – Vernham Dean to Andover 1,579

86
Whitchurch to Winchester 
(Journeys via Barton Stacey during 
school holidays)

£7,681 802

Appendix one

Page 55



Service Route
Annual cost 
to Hampshire 
County 
Council

Annual 
passenger 
journeys

Basingstoke area services

4 Basingstoke to Chineham 
(developer contributions) £233,303 101,555

12 Hatch Warren to Basingstoke £48,583 124,223

14 / 15 14 Basingstoke to Tadley and 15 
Basingstoke to South View £132,737 122,010

74 Overton Local Service £13,648 6,240

76 Andover to Basingstoke 
(late evening journeys supported) £11,387 8,856

C41 Basingstoke to Alresford £36,490 3,851
Basingstoke and Deane Council directly supports services 3B, 16, 55, 59 and the Centre 
Shuttle. They also support late evening journeys on town routes 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 11 and 
Sunday services on routes 2, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 11. Basingstoke and Deane will be reviewing their 
transport contracts later in 2018.*

Eastleigh area services

X6/X7 
Eastleigh to Hiltingbury 
(partial Eastleigh Borough Council) 
(supported Chandlers Ford to 
Hiltingbury)

£13,133 48,578

X9
Eastleigh to Bishops Waltham 
(supported Allbrook to Waltham 
Chase)

£123,120

108,153

X10
Bishops Waltham to Southampton 
(supported Bishops Waltham to 
Moorgreen)

43,278

X15 Eastleigh to Hamble 
(partial Eastleigh Borough Council) £27,958 14,674

E1 Eastleigh to Winchester
£70,568 107,909

E2 Eastleigh to Winchester
Eastleigh Borough Council directly supports late evening journeys on services 2, 3, 6, X7 
and X8. They also support the Sunday service on routes X4, X7 and X9. * 

East Hampshire area services

13
Liphook to Basingstoke 
(supported Liphook to Alton on 
Monday to Friday)

£40,428 114,350

18/618
Aldershot to Haslemere 
(part funded by school transport) 
(supported Whitehill to Haslemere)

£130,002 127,028

Page 56



Service Route
Annual cost 
to Hampshire 
County 
Council

Annual 
passenger 
journeys

East Hampshire area services (continued)
X17 Bishops Waltham to Petersfield £7,695 2,288

28 Bordon Local Service 
(funded by Government Grant) £52,134 5,490

38 Alton to Petersfield £109,095 57,946
71 Froxfield to Petersfield £5,575 1,495
94 Buriton to Petersfield £58,657 21,949
206 Alton to Bentley

£16,207 7,582
208 Alton to Meadstead
240 Ropley to Alresford £13,954 4,160
250 Liphook Local Service £10,828 3,666

Fareham and Gosport area services

11 Fareham to Alverstoke 
(Monday to Friday only) £43,325 36,495

20 Fareham to Wickham £78,396 56,777
21/21A Fareham to Hill Head £48,384 60,148
28/28A Fareham to Whiteley £99,993 50,917

Havant area services

27 Rowlands Castle to Emsworth 
(developer contributions) £79,912 35,382

D1/D2 Waterlooville to Hambledon 
(developer contributions) £120,989 85,601

New Forest area services
H1/H2 Netley View to Applemore Tesco

£79,105
9,857

T3/T4 Cadnam to Totton 9,098

X2
Lymington to Bournemouth 
(partial Dorset County Council) 
(Gore Road New Milton to Walkford 
supported)

£20,785 14,296

6 Lymington to Southampton
(only certain journeys supported) £68,904 57,781

C32/C33 New Milton to Lymington £96,770 13,987

49 Damerham to Salisbury 
(partial Wiltshire Council) £3,368 1,612

Page 57



Service Route
Annual cost 
to Hampshire 
County 
Council

Annual 
passenger 
journeys

New Forest area services (continued)

112 Hythe/Beaulieu to Lymington 
(part funded by school Transport) £74,570 18,798

125 Christchurch to Ringwood 
(partial Dorset County Council) £27,189 9,026

119 Lymington to New Milton
£62,356

42,405
191 Chatsworth Park to New Milton 6,252
193 Barton-on-Sea to New Milton 3,361
Hythe Ferry Hythe Pier to Southampton £77,062 176,433

Romsey area services

5
Romsey to Eastleigh 
(certain early morning and evening 
journeys only)

£8,721 12,193

X7R
Southampton to Salisbury 
(partial Wiltshire Council) (Romsey 
to Salisbury supported)

£24,111 56,316

35 Braishfield to Romsey 
(part funded by school transport) £57,046 15,348

36 Lockerley to Romsey £18,981 724

39 Nomansland to Romsey 
(partial Wiltshire Council) £18,981 2,240

Winchester area services
6A Abbotts Barton to Winchester

£19,372
1,671

63 Owslebury to Winchester 4,398
46 Winchester to North Baddesley £46,148 15,358

67
Winchester to Petersfield 
(part funded by school transport) 
(some school journeys are 
commercially operated)

£196,200 62,911

95/96 East Stratton to Winchester 
(only Tuesdays and Thursdays) £16,006 845

Winchester Town Forum supports the late night services on routes 3 and 5A. *

*These services are considered outside the scope of this consultation

Page 58



 1 

 
 
 
POLICY AND PROJECT 
ADVISORY BOARD 

REPORT NO. ED1801 

12TH JULY 2018 
 
 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (OPERATIONS) 

               HAMPSHIRE 2050 – VISION FOR THE FUTURE 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 Hampshire County Council has recently established a Commission of Inquiry – 
Hampshire 2050, to help develop a vision for Hampshire up to 2050. It is 
planned that the Commission will engage with a variety of Hampshire 
stakeholders, consider a range of submitted evidence and develop proposals 
for the future shape of Hampshire across a number of strategic themes.     

 
1.2 The purpose of this report is to advise the Board that an open consultation is 

currently underway as part of the Commission’s programme, which invites 
comments on what may happen in the future for Hampshire, what the impact of 
this will be, and how the County Council may need to respond to this.     

 

2. AIMS AND OBJECTIVES OF THE COMMISSION  
 

2.1 The Commission has been set up to examine some key themes that will affect 
everyday life over the next few decades. The remit will include economic, social 
and environmental outcomes and some of the key forces within these themes 
such as digital revolution, healthcare, climate change, changing work patterns 
and globalisation. The work will also explore national government plans and 
strategies from a Hampshire perspective. At the end of its inquiry, the 
Commission will make recommendations to ‘guide and contribute to the future 
prosperity, quality of life, and protection and enhancement of the character and 
environment of Hampshire’. The outcomes will help shape longer-term policies 
and delivery of public services.  
 

2.2 The Commission will be cross-party, and with representatives from outside of 
local government. It will meet at a series of evidence gathering hearings to look 
at each of the following strategic themes between July and December 2018, 
followed by some final sessions to consider the evidence as a whole. Evidence 
and views will be invited from experts, residents, communities and businesses. 

 
2.3 The themes will be as follows:   

    

 Demographic and societal changes: including changing population and 
living patterns, and the impact in terms of health and social care, housing 
and employment 

 Economy: the future of the Hampshire economy in the context of Brexit, 
increasing globalisation and potential digital and automation revolutions Page 59

AGENDA ITEM No. 4



 2 

 

 Work, Skills and Lifestyle: future learning and working patterns, and the 
skills needed in a post digital future as well as the wider quality of life within 
Hampshire such as arts, leisure and culture 

 Environment and Quality of Place: Hampshire’s main economic asset – 
the impact of a changing climate, different patterns of living and working, 
and competing demands on countryside and farmland on environmental 
quality, character and quality of life in Hampshire 

 Mobile, Connectivity and Energy: the transport impact of electric powered 
and autonomous vehicles, smart technology in homes and workplaces, 
communications technology, and future energy issues 

 Rural Hampshire: how economic, social, technological and environmental 
changes are likely to affect rural communities and the potential for a rural 
renaissance 

 

2.4  Although the consultation will be open until December 2018, comments should be 
submitted by the following dates in order to be considered at the appropriate 
session within the Commission of Inquiry process:   

 Demographic and societal challenges – 29th June 2018 

 Economy – 13th July 2018  

 Work, skills and lifestyle – 24th August 2018 

 Environment and quality of place – 12th October 2018 

 Mobility, Connectivity and Energy – 23rd November 2018 

 Rural Hampshire – 21st December 2018  
  

2.5 There is an online questionnaire for the Hampshire Commission of Inquiry – Vision 
to 2050 to submit views and comments, and further information on the Hampshire 
2050 website.     
 
The survey questions for each theme are: 

1. What do you think might happen in the future? 
2. How will that effect/impact on what we do? 
3. How will the County Council and Partners need to react in light of this? 

2.6 Once the hearings have been completed, a full report on the findings of the 
Commission will be presented to Hampshire County Council in the summer of 
2019 and made publicly available.  

 
 
 
 Page 60

https://etehampshirecc.researchfeedback.net/s.asp?k=152533806340
https://www.hants.gov.uk/aboutthecouncil/haveyoursay/visionforhampshire2050
https://www.hants.gov.uk/aboutthecouncil/haveyoursay/visionforhampshire2050


 3 

 
 

3. RECOMMENDATION 
 

The Board is invited to note that the Commission of Inquiry – Vision for 
Hampshire 2050 is underway, and that consultation feedback is invited from 
residents and communities. The Board may wish to consider whether to submit 
a co-ordinated response on any of the strategic themes.      

 
 

 
 
IAN HARRISON 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (OPERATIONS) 
 
 

Contact: Jill Shuttleworth, Democratic Services Manager Ext: 8822 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



  

POLICY AND PROJECT ADVISORY BOARD WORK PROGRAMME 
 

 
The purpose of the work programme is to plan, manage and co-ordinate the ongoing activity and progress of the Council’s Policy 

and Projects Advisory Board, incorporating policy development work carried out through working groups. An update will be 

submitted to each meeting of the Board.   

 
(A) CURRENT WORKING GROUPS APPOINTED BY THE POLICY AND PROJECTS ADVISORY BOARD 
 

 
GROUP 

 
MEMBERSHIP 2018/19 

 
CURRENT POSITION 

 
CONTACT 

 
Elections Group 
 

 
Cllrs Sophia Choudhary, 
G.B. Lyon, J.E. Woolley, 
S.J. Masterson, K. 
Dibble and B. Jones 
 
Chairman: Cllr Sophia 
Choudhary 

 
Expected to meet in July and September, 
2018. The main activity is to consider 
outcomes from the elections ‘systems thinking’ 
review and plan next steps. In addition, 
arrangements for the 2019 election. 
 
 
 

 
Andrew Colver, Head of 
Democratic Services,  
Tel: (01252) 398820, 
 
Email: 
andrew.colver@rushmoor.gov.uk  

 
Strategic Housing 
and Local Plan 
Group 
 
To steer the 
development of the 
Local Plan and 
monitor updates to 
the Housing and 
Homelessness 
Strategy 

 
Cllrs A.R. Newell, D.E. 
Clifford, Barbara Hurst, 
B.A. Thomas, R.L.G. 
Dibbs, M.J. Tennant, 
M.J. Roberts, C.P. 
Grattan, D.M.T Bell 
 
 
Chairman: Cllr Adrian 
Newell 

 
The Local Plan examination took place in May 
2018, and the Council was asked to submit 
further evidence by 18/6/18. It is expected that 
the inspector’s recommendations for change 
will require a public consultation.  
 
Meeting to be held on 31st July, 2018 to 
provide feedback from the Examination and 
explain the next steps through to adoption.   
 
 
 

 
Keith Holland 
Head of Planning 
Tel: (01252) 398790 
keith.holland@rushmoor.gov.uk 
 
Qamer Yasin 
Head of Environmental Health 
and Housing  
Tel. (01252) 398640 
qamer.yasin@rushmoor.gov.uk 

P
age 63

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 N

o. 5

mailto:andrew.colver@rushmoor.gov.uk
mailto:qamer.yasin@rushmoor.gov.uk


 
GROUP 

 
MEMBERSHIP 2018/19 

 
CURRENT POSITION 

 
CONTACT 

 
Aldershot 
Regeneration  
Group 
 

 

 

 
Cllrs Sophia Choudhary, 
M.J. Tennant, P.I.C 
Crerar, M.L. Sheehan, 
A.H. Crawford and Sue 
Dibble 
 

Chairman: Cllr Sophia 
Choudhary 

 
The Cabinet agreed the Regeneration 
Programme on 29/5/18. A Members’ Seminar 
to update on the projects will be held in the 
Autumn.  
 
Discussion planned at Progress Group 
15/10/18.  
 

 
Karen Edwards 
Executive Director 
Tel: (01252) 398800 
karen.edwards@rushmoor.gov.uk 

 
Farnborough 
Regeneration 
Group 
 
 

 
Cllrs Marina Munro, M.J. 
Tennant, Liz Corps, 
P.G. Taylor, C.P. 
Grattan and B. Jones 
 

Chairman: Cllr Marina 
Munro  

 
The Cabinet agreed the Regeneration 
Programme on 29/5/18. A Members’ Seminar 
to update on the projects will be held in the 
Autumn.  
 
Discussion planned at Progress Group 
15/10/18.  
 

 

Karen Edwards  
Executive Director 
Tel: (01252) 398800 
karen.edwards@rushmoor.gov.uk 

 
Leisure Facilities 
and Contracts  

 
Group not yet appointed 
 
 
 

 
Discussion on the future of leisure provision to 
be held at an Informal Cabinet meeting on 
26th June, 2018.  
 
The issue to be included on the agenda for the 
Board meeting on 12th July, 2018 – to include 
a presentation by the Head of Community 
Services.  
 
Linked to this, the Progress Group has 
identified future work around the development 
of a new Procurement Strategy. It was noted 
that this should be informed by Overview and 
Scrutiny review activity.   
.    

 
Peter Amies 
Head of Community and 
Environmental Services 
Tel: (01252) 398750 
peter.amies@rushmoor.gov.uk  

P
age 64

mailto:karen.edwards@rushmoor.gov.uk
mailto:karen.edwards@rushmoor.gov.uk
mailto:peter.amies@rushmoor.gov.uk


 
GROUP 

 
MEMBERSHIP 2018/19 

 
CURRENT POSITION 

 
CONTACT 

 
Health, Wellbeing 
and Obesity  
 
 
 

 
 

 
Notice of Motion on ‘tackling obesity’ referred 
by the full Council on 18/4/18.   
 
The Board to hold a scoping session at its 
meeting on 19th September, 2018 with a view 
to understanding more about the issue, areas 
where progress is being made, and potential 
issues for future policy change/support.      
 

 
Peter Amies  
Head of Community and 
Environmental Services 
Tel: (01252) 398750  
peter.amies@rushmoor.gov.uk  

 
Rushmoor 2020 
Modernisation 
and Improvement 
Programme Task 
and Finish Group 

 

 

 

 
Members’ Seminar on the Rushmoor 2020 
modernisation and improvement programme 
was held on 27th June.   

The Progress Group to consider draft terms of 
reference/outcomes at its meeting on 25th 
July. 

The Progress Group identified matters that 
could be incorporated within the 2020 
modernisation work; big data and digital 
strategy - including getting different council 
systems to work together. It was suggested 
that a longer-term visioning piece could 
incorporate carbon strategy.    

 

 

 
Karen Edwards,  
Executive Director 
Tel: (01252) 398800 
karen.edwards@rushmoor.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

P
age 65

mailto:peter.amies@rushmoor.gov.uk
mailto:karen.edwards@rushmoor.gov.uk


 

(B) OTHER ISSUES/MATTERS FOR THE WORK PROGRAMME   

 

ISSUE 
 

 
Details 
 

 
Contact Details 

 
Establishment of a Local 
Housing Company  
 
 

 
The Policy and Project Board to consider the arrangements for 
the establishment of a Local Housing Company at a special 
meeting on 30th August, 2018. A report with recommendations 
to be made to the Cabinet meeting on 18th September and full 
Council on 4th October, 2018. 
 

 
Karen Edwards,  
Executive Director 
Tel: (01252) 398800 
karen.edwards@rushmoor.gov.uk 
 

 
HCC T19 – public 
consultation on street 
lighting, supported 
passenger transport 
services and the 
concessional travel scheme 
 

 
The Board to consider the current HCC T19 consultation at its 
meeting on 12th July, with a view to informing the Council’s 
feedback and response. The consultation closes on 5th 
August, 2018.  

 
Ian Harrison 
Executive Director 
Tel: (01252) 398400 
Ian.harrison@rushmoor.gov.uk  

 
Southwood Park 
Management Plan 
 
 
 

 
Update on the latest position to be discussed at the Progress 
Group once the results from commissioned work are available.   
 

 
Ian Harrison 
Executive Director 
Tel: (01252) 398400 
Ian.harrison@rushmoor.gov.uk  

 
Development of Asset 
Management Strategy 
 

 
Item proposed by the Progress Group on 14/6  

 

 

  

P
age 66

mailto:karen.edwards@rushmoor.gov.uk
mailto:Ian.harrison@rushmoor.gov.uk
mailto:Ian.harrison@rushmoor.gov.uk


POLICY AND PROJECTS ADVISORY BOARD 
AGENDA PLANNING – 2018-2019 

 

12th July 2018 
 
 

 

 Leisure Facilities and Contracts 

 Response to T19 Consultation – street lighting, 
supported passenger transport services and 
concessionary travel 

 Hampshire Vision 2050 - Commission of Inquiry  
 

30th August 2018  Establishment of a Local Housing Company 

19th September 
2018 

 Scoping session – health, wellbeing and obesity 

 Rushmoor 2020 Modernisation and Improvement 
Programme 

 Aldershot Town Centre Strategy   

 
21st November 
2018 
 

 Budget Strategy 
 

 
23rd January 2019 
 

 

3rd April 2019  

 

PROGRESS GROUP MEETINGS 

Membership: Cllrs A.R. Newell, Marina Munro, Sophia Choudhary, J.B. Canty, M.J. Roberts 

and P.F. Rust 

 
25th July 2018 
 
 

 Planning for Health, Wellbeing and Obesity item in 
September  

 Terms of reference for 2020 modernisation and 
improvement Group (following Members’ Seminar on 27th 
June) 

15th October 2018 
 Discussion on Regeneration arising from the Members’ 

Seminar in Autumn 2018 
 

4th December 2018  Review Progress Group’s terms of reference  

 
6th February 2019 
 

 

 
8th April 2019 
 

 

 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	2 LEISURE FACILITIES AND ASSOCIATED CONTRACTS
	3 RESPONSE TO THE HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL T19 CONSULTATION
	Item 3 Street Light and Bus Consultation - Infopack
	Item 3 Response Form Street Light and Bus Consultation

	4 HAMPSHIRE 2050 - A VISION FOR THE FUTURE
	5 WORK PROGRAMME

